
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        DECEMBER 3, 2012 

                                                                                  6:30 P.M.     

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council Meeting Minutes / November 19, 2012  

                                                    

PUBLIC HEARING:       Rezoning and Annexation:  GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

 

  Location:                 Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 

  Present Zoning:       RSF-2 Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15 

  Requested Zoning:  R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

  Recommendation:   No Recommendation / Motion to set forth an unfavorable recommendation  

                                  failed. Six members were present three voted in the affirmative and three  

                                  dissented /  

         

 

MOTIONS:  a.) Recognize a special occasion “The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial 

             and Retail Establishments 

 

       b.)  To exercise the authority of the City Council granted by Section 33-5 (e) (1) of    

              the Land Use and Development Ordinance  2011-54 

                 

 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE -  Conaway 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Haygood    

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  –   Rudicell 

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -    Fry       

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune       

          Review minutes / October 15
th

  

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments  –   Adrienne Jones   

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority –  Conaway    

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Haygood     

          Review minutes / November 13
th

  

     

    D.  Library Board –  Lake 

  E.  Planning Commission –Scott 

          Review minutes / October 25
th

  

a.) Set Public Hearing date for January 7, 2013 to consider: Amendments to the Land Use and   

                Development Ordinance 2011-54 and authorize advertisement of Public Hearing: 

                 1.)   Article 8 / Definition of Terms / Prefabricated / Accessory Structures, Prefabricated 

2.) Article 9, Section 12 (g)  / Accessory Structures 

 

     

            

 1



 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                         DECEMBER 3, 2012                               PAGE   2 

 

 

F.  Recreation Board  –   LeJeune  

G.  Utility Board  –  Fry 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 

    A.  Mayor’s Report  
    B.  City Attorney’s Report  

    C.  Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS 
 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

       2
ND

  READ         
a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Profit Drive Extension. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-66 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Garbage Truck Replacement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-67 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
c.)  Rezone: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-69 

 

d.)  Annexation: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-70 

 

e.)   Consenting to the Sale by the Utilities Board of the 

       City of Daphne of Certain Personal Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-71  

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES                                    
COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN HAYGOOD  PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

INTERIM CITY CLERK: 

 

REBECCA HAYES                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

3



 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

1 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mr. Willie Robison gave the invocation. 

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Dane Haygood. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Yelding;  Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Britton Bonner, Attorney; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman,  Human 

Resource Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; Captain Danny 

Bell, Police Department; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

 

3. APPROVE MINUTES: 

There were no corrections to the November 5, 2012 Organizational council meeting minutes, 

November 5, 2012 Business council meeting and November 13, 2012 Council work session 

minutes.  Minutes are adopted as presented. 

 

 

4.  REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the November 13
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

Treasurers Report / October 31, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Conaway to accept the Treasurers Report in the amount of 

$18,412,777.21.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

      ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / September 30, 2012 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for September 2012    -   $1,004,661 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for September 2012    -   $  899,386           

Over Budget (for September)                                      -   $  105,275  

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $577,928 
 
 
 

5



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Lodging Tax Collections, September 30, 2012  

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $49,968.89 collected for September 2012 

 

     B.  Buildings and Property Committee – Lake 

No meeting was held in November.  The next meeting will be December 3
rd

. 

 

C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell 

The minutes for the November 14
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be December 

12
th

.  

 

   D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The minutes for the November 14
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The committee is reviewing several 

ordinances. 

 

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

The committee met today.  The next meeting will be the December 17
th

.  

 

                                                                                 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones 

No report. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to appoint Phillip Durant to the BZA as a 

supernumerary member.  Seconded by Councilman Dry.   

 

  AYE    ALL IN FAVOR       NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to appoint Dorothy Morrison to the Downtown 

Redevelopment Authority.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

      AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Haygood 

The board met November 13
th

, the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will 

be January 4
th

.   

   

 

 

 

 

 
6



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to appoint James M. Morris / Term November 1, 2012 – September 

30, 2016 and Nancy Volovecky / Term November 1, 2012 – September 30, 2016.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

        AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott 

The Commission met last Thursday, and the minutes are in the packet. 

 

F.   Recreation Board - LeJeune 

The board met Wednesday, and the next meeting will be December 12
th

.  

 

G. Utility Board – Fry 

The board met, and the minutes for the September 26
th

 meeting are in the packet. There is an ordinance on 

the agenda tonight giving council approval for the Utility Board to lease some property to Algae Systems.  

The next meeting will be November 28
th

.   

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

a.) Parade Permit / Shadow Barons / Mardi Gras / February 9, 2013 / Rain Date   

     February 10, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permits for the Shadow Barons / Mardi 

Gras / February 9, 2013 / Rain Date February 10, 2013.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

        

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

    C. Department Head Comments 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported the 1
st
 Community Bank was robbed, and the suspect was 

apprehended a short time later in Spanish Fort with assistance from the Spanish Fort Police. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported the Christmas Parade is November 30
th

.  Open 

House is at 5:00 p.m., the tree lighting is at 5:30 p.m. and the parade starts at 6:30 p.m.  He 

mentioned to the  council if they wanted to  ride in the parade to contact him. 

 

 

 
7



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported they sold 300 tickets to the Ballroom 

Dance.  She reminded everyone that starting December 2
nd

 through December 24
th

 there will be 

holiday movies shown at the Civic Center.  The tickets are one dollar ($1.00).  The Baldwin Pops 

will be playing December 4
th

.  

 

Tonja Young – Library Director -  reported there will be activities for teens and children 

November 29
th

 making ornaments.   There will be a lecture series on World War II in January. 

 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director – reported that a roads data base has been established 

for the entire city with reports on each district.  They will be in council mailboxes.  This report will 

be considered at the December work session. He said there are 135.4 miles of roads in the city 

limits. Profit Road is ready to go December 2
nd

, and it came it for $35,000 less than what was 

estimated. Phase II of the Lake Forest Road Project will commence December 3
rd

.  There will be 

tree trimming activities at City Hall on November 28
th

.  He invited all to come and enjoy the 

festivities.   

 
 

 

7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business Owner in Daphne – spoke against hiring a consultant for the AT&T tower 

and is against giving money to the Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Mrs. Holly LeJeune – thanked the Public Works Department for always being on the spot when something 

needs done like filling potholes, and commended the department for being well run. 

 

Ms. Lynn Mitchell – Daphne – commended the Civic Center staff for their hard work at the Ballroom 

Dance event. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – worked the polls for the election, and almost 9,000 people came out to vote.  He gave 

kudos to the Civic Center staff, and thanked them for their help. 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Bid Award:  Profit Drive Extension / John G. Walton  

       Construction Co. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-93 

 

b.)   Bid Award: Library Carpet Replacement / Richard Sprouse  

        Construction, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-94 

 

c.)   Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce Agreement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-95 

 

 

 

 

 
8



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

d.)   Participation in the State of AL Severe Weather Preparedness 

        Tax Holiday for the Year 2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-96 

 

e.)   Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards: Building Official – 

       Inspections. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-97 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-93, 2012-94, 2012-95, 

2012-96 and 2012-97.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

     AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2012-93 and 2012-94.  Seconded by 

Councilman Haygood.   

 

     AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTIONBY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2012-95.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

    AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2012-96 and 2012-97.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

    AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 
ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

  READ 

a.)    Appropriation of Funds: 4 Police Vehicle Replacements. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-60 

 

b.)   Consenting to the Lease of Certain Property by the 

        Utilities Board of the City of Daphne to the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-65 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

         1
ST

 READ 
c.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Profit Drive Extension . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-66 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Garbage Truck Replacement . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-67 

 

e.)   Lodging Tax Appropriation:  Williams Property Acquisition 

        and Remediation for Yancey Branch Sediment Control. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-68 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Haygood to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-60 and 2012-65.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2012-60.  Seconded by Councilman 

Haygood. 

 

         AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Fry, LeJeune, Haygood, Scott                        NAY    Lake             

 

                                                               MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2012-65.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

ORDINANCES 2012-66, 2012-67 AND 2012-68 REMAIN 1
ST

 READ. 

 
 

   9.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilman Haygood wished everyone a wonderful holiday. 

 

Councilman LeJeune wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving. 

 

Councilman Fry is happy with the comments regarding the Civic Center and Public Works.  He feels all 

the departments are good.  He wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving, and asked everyone to remember 

Coach Vic in their prayers. 

 

Councilman Lake wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving. He will not be here for the December 3
rd

 

council meeting as he will be in Boston attending the National League of Cities Conference. 

 

Councilman Rudicell wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving, and asked to keep the Public Safety  officer 

who lost his father in their prayers. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway wished everyone a blessed Thanksgiving. 

 

 
10



NOVEMBER 19, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

  Mayor Yelding said he has the greatest department heads in the western hemisphere.  They work hard 

to make the city function well.  He wants to establish the same relationship with council so he will be 

calling to make an appointment to meet with each council member in his office after Christmas to get to 

know them better.  He wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving.   

 

Council President Scott wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving, and he appreciates the new 

council members getting involved. 

 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Conaway. 

 

    AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 7:20  P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                                                     
 

____________________________                              

Rebecca A. Hayes,       

Interim City Clerk    

                            

                                       Certification of Presiding Officer:       
 

 

                                       ___________________________________ 

           Ron Scott, 

          Council President 

 
 

11



 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

DECEMBER 3, 2012 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 
 

 

GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

 

Location:                    Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee              

                                    Boulevard and County Road 13 

Present Zoning:          RSF-2 Single Family District, Baldwin County   

                                    District 15 

Requested Zoning:     R-3, High Density Single Family Residential   

                                    District, City of Daphne 

Recommendation:      No Recommendation / Motion to set forth an  

                                    unfavorable recommendation failed. Six  

                                    members were present three voted in the  

                                    affirmative and three dissented 

    

 

 

 

 

 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-  

    
Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 
Also Known as GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

 

 
 WHEREAS, GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee, as the owner of certain real property located 

within the unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be 

pre-zoned from RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15 to R-3, High Density 

Single Family Residential; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and 

County Road 13, and more particularly described as follows:  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 

EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, PAGE 274; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' ROW); 

THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 89°32'20" EAST, 42.92 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD; THENCE RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY 

SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" 

EAST, 3490.21 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

H°19'19" EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00°10'07" EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' ROW); THENCE RUN ALONG SAID EAST 

RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. PARCEL 

CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LYING IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 

EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on October 25, 2012, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth no recommendation to the City Council of the 

City of Daphne regarding said property rezoning request with the motion to set forth an unfavorable 

recommendation failing to pass; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a 

public hearing was held before the City Council on December 3, 2012; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-zoning 

of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows 

 

 

 

 36



 
ORDINANCE 2012-                      REZONE:  RETREAT AT TIAWASEE                PAGE   2 

 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from Baldwin County District 15 RSF-

2, Single Family District to City of Daphne Zone R-3, High Density Single Family Residential, and 

that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.    

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in 

so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, 

or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of annexation of the above described property 

into the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                        , 2012. 

         

 

                                          

  

       _____________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
__________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

Interim City Clerk 

37



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
ORDINANCE 2012- 

 
ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 24th day of September, 2012, GCOF Retreat at 
Tiawasee, being the owner of all real property hereinafter described, did file with 
the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 
into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the 
described territory and a map of said property showing its relationship to the 
corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama did 
determine that it is in the public interest that said property be annexed into the 
City of Daphne, Alabama and it did further determine that all legal requirements 
for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20, et 
seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 
 
 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares 
as the legislative body of the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best 
interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama and the citizens of the 
affected area, to bring the territory described in Section 2 of this Ordinance into 
the City of Daphne, Alabama effective ____________________. 
 
 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 
 
 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are 
hereby altered or rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before 
encompassed by the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and in 
addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 
 
 Owner:  GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, 

38



PAGE 274; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' ROW); THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY NORTH 89°32'20" EAST, 42.92 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD 

ROAD; THENCE RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" EAST, 3490.21 

FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH H°19'19" 

EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; 

THENCE RUN NORTH 00°10'07" EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" 

WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' ROW); 

THENCE RUN ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING. PARCEL CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LYING 

IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
 SECTION III:  PUBLICATION 
 
 This Ordinance shall be published as provided by law and a certified copy 
of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 
County, Alabama. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS THE ______ DAY OF ________________, 2012. 
 
 
 

                                              
      _____________________________             
      Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

 Mayor 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes 
Interim City Clerk 

 

39



PROMOTIONAL ADVERTISING MOTIONS 

 

 

2 PROPOSED MOTIONS 

1.)  MOTION:   

 

Motion to recognize a special occasion “The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial and 

Retail Establishments” 

 

The City Council recognizes the economic recession and the on-going impacts of the economic 

down-turn as it relates to businesses in the City of Daphne. The City Council hereby recognizes 

“The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial and Retail Establishments” beginning 

December 3, 2012 and ending May 29, 2013 in support of stimulating local business activity.   

 

 

2.)  MOTION:   

Motion to exercise the authority of the City Council granted by Section 33-5 (e) (1) of the Land 

Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54:   

The City Council has determined that “The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial and 

Retail Establishments” and it is hereby designated by the City Council as an occasion to allow 

the following temporary promotional signs for commercial and retail establishments:  temporary 

signs and banners not exceeding fifty (50) square feet in area, temporary decorative flags, 

tethered inflatable items, bunting, pennants and streamers as provided in Section 33-5 (e) (1) of 

the Land Use & Development Ordinance.  

Therefore, temporary signs and banners, temporary decorative flags, tethered inflatable items, 

bunting, pennants and streamers are authorized in the City of Daphne each Friday at 12:00 a.m. 

through Sunday at 11:59 p.m. beginning December 3, 2012 and ending May 29, 2013.   

This motion does not suspend or replace any provisions of the sign ordinance, and reiterates that 

all other requirements of the sign ordinance remain under stringent and uniform enforcement. 

Each must meet all other requirements and provisions of the Land Use & Development 

Ordinance.  

 

 

 

40



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

41



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on October 15, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The October meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman John Lake, 

Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-PW Administrative 

Assistant, Jaye Robertson-HMR Engineers, Randy Davis-Volkert Engineering, Pat 

Rudicell-Councilman Elect District 2, Councilman Elect District 6-Robin LeJeune 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – September reports reviewed.  FY12 reports included. 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – September & YTD reports reviewed. Richard 

noted that PD was high due to an engine replacement on a Crown Victoria. 

C. Public Participation –  None 

D. Correspondence – None 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – September 17, 2012.  Motion made by Councilwoman Lake to accept the 

minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman Conaway.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Reports – September reports reviewed.   

C. Street Sweeper Reports – September reports reviewed.  It was noted that Park City was 

swept.   
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Proposed Sidewalk Improvement Projects Update – North side of Wilson to Watts Lane, 

200’ +/- in Historic Malbis, tie Brookhaven in with Whispering Pines Road. Planning to 

attend Grant Workshop which is a requirement in order to apply for Grants for sidewalks. 

Next month, Richard would like to present solid numbers on sidewalk projects.  Mayor 

Yelding asked about sidewalks in Daphmont areas. 

B. Barricade Rentals – Richard reported that we currently charge private businesses a fee for 

the rental of barricades.  He distributed a report showing all barricades used by other 

municipalities/schools/etc. for the past year.  It was noted that several municipalities are 

utilizing the barricades more than Daphne was using them.  Councilman Lake noted that this 

usage creates extra wear and tear on the barricades each time they are moved as well as the 

trailers that they are loaded on.  It was suggested that a rental fee be imposed for all barricade 

rentals including other municipalities.   

C. Capital Equipment Budget Requests FY13 – Public Works would like to request two (2) 

trucks for the Grounds Department.  Can order from State bid list.  Richard requested a motion 

to send request to Finance Committee for approval.  Motion by Councilman Lake to request 

approval to purchase two (2) trucks for the Grounds Department.  Motion seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway.  Motion Carried. 
 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Capital Roads Improvement Projects Update – Pinehill Road paved.  Striping to be 

completed next week.  Working on base repairs pm Main Street.  Jaye noted that the 

contractor should finish that up by Friday, depending on weather.  Well Road is open and 

traffic is flowing.  Lake Forest Phase II is going before Council tonight for approval.  Profit 

Road is currently out for bid.  Due back in November.   Will complete 2012 street evaluations 

prior to next meeting. 

 
42



VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – Richard noted that September tonnage/revenue is up.  

ADEM Grant received.  That money will be put into good use very quickly. 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).   

C. 29 Yard Automated Garbage Truck – Richard discussed the schedule of replacing Solid 

Waste vehicles.  It is now time to replace a 2005 Garbage truck.  It is 7 years old. After 4 

years, we own the truck.  Should bring in around $5-6K in surplus.  Richard requested a 

motion to take this request to the finance committee for consideration.  Requesting one (1) 28 

yard Automated Side Loading Refuse Collection Truck.  Can order through NJPA and not 

have to go through the bid process.  Motion made by Councilman Lake to sent request for 

the purchase of one (1) 28 Yard Automated Side Loading Refuse Collection Truck.  

Motion seconded by Councilwoman Conaway.  Motion Carried. 
 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – Minutes for September 10, 2012 meeting reviewed.  No comments 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – October 1, 2012 minutes   

 

IX. ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – October 1, 2012 Meeting 

 

X. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – No Report 

B. Volkert Update – Randy started that the traffic signal equipment came in for the intersection 

of HY98 and CR64.  Installation will start on Thursday and is expected to take approximately 

three weeks. 

  

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

B. Next Meeting – November 19, 2012 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 5:39 PM.  

43



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

44



NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT –Toni Fassbender; Doug Bailey; Dan Romanchuk; Pokey Miller. 

 

Also present – Rebecca Hayes; Dane Haygood. 

 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / SEPTEMBER 24, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the September 24, 2012 meeting minutes.  Seconded 

by Pokey Miller. 

 

                      ALL IN FAVOR             NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

No old business 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

 

Rob McElroy, General Manager of Daphne Utilities, discussed the IDB’s potential to offer tax 

abatements for construction and equipment to Algae Systems.  Further discussion will be held at 

the January 2013 meeting. 

 

Lee Lawson, new CEO of the Baldwin County Economic Alliance, discussed opportunities that 

world come with the Air Bus activity, and would naturally filter to Daphne, because of the city’s 

proximity. They just need to be patient.   

 

5.)  TREASURERS REPORT  

 

The balance is $243,701.28 

 

 

5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      None 

 

 

 

45



NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

 

 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to adjourn.  Seconded by Pokey Miller. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONED OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

 ADJOURNED AT 6:30 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, Secretary 
 

Approved: 

 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

75



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

76



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

77



ORDINANCE 2012 - 66 
 

Profit Drive Extension 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain Four Cent Gas Tax appropriations are required 
and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Four Cent Gas Tax Funds may be used for resurfacing, restoration, 
and construction of roads within a municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Profit Drive Extension project meets this definition; and  
 
WHEREAS, $ 106,445 was previously budgeted for such project; and  
 
WHEREAS, bids were obtained and the total project cost, including engineering 
and inspections, is estimated to be $ 271,845.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an appropriation in the amount of $ 165,400 ($ 271,845 total cost-$ 
106,445 already appropriated) is hereby approved from the Four Cent Gas Tax 
Fund and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for the Profit Drive Extension 
project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                           

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

 

78



ORDINANCE 2012- 67 
Garbage Truck Replacement Appropriation 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations from the Garbage Enterprise 
Fund are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 
2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Garbage department has a Fleet Management Plan which 
identifies aging vehicles that are becoming costly to maintain in working order; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City needs to keep garbage trucks in good working order to avoid 
constant repairs and subsequent interruptions in garbage collection services; and 
 
WHEREAS, a new 28-yard vehicle is required in Fiscal 2013 to meet these 
requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City lease-purchases such vehicles and the debt service is paid by 
the Garbage Enterprise Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds are available in the Garbage Enterprise Fund for such purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
Garbage Enterprise Fund appropriation in the amount of $ 234,910 (National Joint 
Powers Alliance pricing) to lease purchase a 28-yard automatic side-loading refuse 
collection truck and the Finance Director is authorized to pursue lease-purchase 
financing for such purchase. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
          
 
    

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

79



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-69  

    
Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 
Also Known as GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

 

 
 WHEREAS, GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee, as the owner of certain real property located 

within the unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be 

pre-zoned from RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15 to R-3, High Density 

Single Family Residential; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and 

County Road 13, and more particularly described as follows:  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 

EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, PAGE 274; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' ROW); 

THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 89°32'20" EAST, 42.92 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD; THENCE RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY 

SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" 

EAST, 3490.21 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

H°19'19" EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00°10'07" EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' ROW); THENCE RUN ALONG SAID EAST 

RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. PARCEL 

CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LYING IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 

EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on October 25, 2012, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth no recommendation to the City Council of the 

City of Daphne regarding said property rezoning request with the motion to set forth an unfavorable 

recommendation failing to pass; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a 

public hearing was held before the City Council on December 3, 2012; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-zoning 

of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows 

 

 

 

 80



 
ORDINANCE 2012-69                      REZONE:  RETREAT AT TIAWASEE                PAGE   2 

 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from Baldwin County District 15 RSF-

2, Single Family District to City of Daphne Zone R-3, High Density Single Family Residential, and 

that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.    

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in 

so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, 

or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of annexation of the above described property 

into the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                        , 2012. 

         

 

                                          

  

       _____________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
__________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

Interim City Clerk 

81



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
ORDINANCE 2012-70 

 
ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 24th day of September, 2012, GCOF Retreat at 
Tiawasee, being the owner of all real property hereinafter described, did file with 
the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 
into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the 
described territory and a map of said property showing its relationship to the 
corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama did 
determine that it is in the public interest that said property be annexed into the 
City of Daphne, Alabama and it did further determine that all legal requirements 
for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20, et 
seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 
 
 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares 
as the legislative body of the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best 
interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama and the citizens of the 
affected area, to bring the territory described in Section 2 of this Ordinance into 
the City of Daphne, Alabama effective from and after the date of its approval by 
the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 
 
 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 
 
 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are 
hereby altered or rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before 
encompassed by the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and in 
addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 
 
 Owner:  GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

82



JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, 

PAGE 274; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' ROW); THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF 

WAY NORTH 89°32'20" EAST, 42.92 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD 

ROAD; THENCE RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" EAST, 3490.21 

FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH H°19'19" 

EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; 

THENCE RUN NORTH 00°10'07" EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" 

WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' ROW); 

THENCE RUN ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING. PARCEL CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LYING 

IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
 SECTION III:  PUBLICATION 
 
 This Ordinance shall be published as provided by law and a certified copy 
of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 
County, Alabama. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS THE ______ DAY OF ________________, 2012. 
 
 
 

                                              
      _____________________________             
      Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

 Mayor 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes 
Interim City Clerk 

 

83



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2012 –71 
 

AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO THE SALE BY THE UTILITIES BOARD OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE OF CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS 

WHEREAS, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne (“Daphne Utilities”) is required to 

receive the consent of the City of Daphne before it sells property under the provisions of Ala. 

Code § 11-50-314(a)(10); and 

WHEREAS, the management of Daphne Utilities has determined that it is in the best 

interest of Daphne Utilities to sell the personal property described on Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Daphne Utilities has approved the sale of the 

personal property described on Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of the City of Daphne 

does hereby consent to the sale by Daphne Utilities of the personal property described on Exhibit 

“A”. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____day of ___________, 2012. 

  

        

       ___________________________________ 

Bailey Yelding, Jr., 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

Interim City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84



 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

DEPARTMENT 

TRUCK 

# YEAR MAKE & MODEL TAG # VIN 

21 - WATQUAL  78 1996 FORD F-150 6181 2FTEF15N6TCA49134 

40 - WWTP  69 1996 FORD TAURUS GL 6101 1FALP52U1TA209466 

50 - METER  16 2000 DODGE DAKOTA 8416 1B7FL26X1YS779572 

70 - LINE 

LOCATES 66 1995 FORD F-150 5660 1FTEF15N3SNA78891 

50 - METER  67 1995 FORD F-150 5659 1FTEF15N1SNA78890 

30 - GAS   63 1993 FORD F-150 5062 1FTDF15N5PNA67748 

30 - GAS   68 1995 FORD F-350 5798 1FDHF37H1SEA62457 

30 - GAS   79 1996 DODGE DAKOTA 6191 1B7FL26XOTS672490 

41 - WWFS 84 1997 CHEVY S - 10 6567 1GCCS19X7V8150922 

 

 

85


	AGENDA - December 3
	City Roll Call
	Council Minutes - November 19
	Public Hearing  Info
	REVISED MOTION TO EXTEND BALLONS AND BANNERS FOR BUSINESSES (2)
	Reporting of Standing Committees
	Public Woks  MINUTES
	Report of Special Boards
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Set Public Hearing Info - Jan 7 - 13
	Mayors Report
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE
	2012-66 - ORD - Four Cent Gas Tax Profit Drive Ext
	2012-67 - ORD - Garbage Truck
	2012-69 - ORD - REZONE GCOF RETREAT AT TIAWASEE (4)
	2012-70 - ORD - ANNEX RETREAT AT TIAWASEE (2)
	2012-71 - ORD - DUB Salvage Sale Resolution



